
Community-Policing/Black Lives Matter Joint Task Force 

February 8, 2016 
 1 

APPROVED 
 

CITY OF YPSILANTI 

 POLICE-COMMUNITY RELATIONS/  
BLACK LIVES MATTER 

JOINT TASK FORCE 

TASKFORCE MINUTES 
MONDAY, February 8, 2016 

7:00 P.M. 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

I. CALL TO ORDER –  

 
The meeting was called to order at 7:06 p.m. 

 
II. ROLL CALL –  

 
TASK FORCE 

 

Council Member Nicole Brown, Chair   Present 
HRC Commissioner Jennifer Symanns   Absent 

Council Member Anne Brown    Present 
HRC Commissioner John Shuler, Co-Chair  Present 

Council Member Brian Robb    Present 

HRC Commissioner Theresa Saunders   Present (Arrived 7:27 p.m.) 
 

III. INVOCATION – 
 

Council Member Nicole Brown asked all to stand for a moment of silence. 

 
IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – 

 
“I pledge allegiance to the flag, of the United States of America, and to the Republic for which it 

stands, one nation, under God, indivisible, with liberty and justice for all.” 
 

V. AGENDA APPROVAL –  

 
Council Member Anne Brown moved, seconded by Commissioner John Shuler to approve the 

agenda. 
 

On a voice vote, the motion carried, and the agenda were approved as submitted. 

 
VI. MINUTES 

 
 January 11, 2016 

 

Council Member Anne Brown moved, seconded by Commissioner John Shuler to approve the 
agenda. 

 

On voice vote, the motion carried, and the minutes were approved as submitted. 
 

VII. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION –  
 



Community-Policing/Black Lives Matter Joint Task Force 

February 8, 2016 
 2 

1. Libby Hunter, 827 Bruce, Ann Arbor, stated she is associated with Radical Washtenaw and 

asked if the Task Force has produced answers to the questions Radical Washtenaw 
submitted. 

 
VIII. CHAIR RESPONSE –  

 

Council Member Anne Brown asked if Radical Washtenaw would like a written response.  Ms. 
Hunter replied that has not been decided by Radical Washtenaw and is open to suggestion.  

Ms. Hunter said you can get in touch with the organization through the website. 
 

An audience member added the Task Force could provide information tonight. 
 

Commissioner Shuler stated the report submitted during the last meeting was a draft and 

asked when the final would be complete.  Ms. Hunter replied the one currently on the Radical 
Website is the final copy.  Mr. Shuler asked when part two of the report will be available.  

De’real Graham responded the individual working on that information was unable to be here 
tonight.  An Audience member stated Radical Washtenaw has been canvassing residents to 

provide first person testimonials. 

 
IX. DISCUSSION ITEMS –  

 
1. Review online fillable complaint form. 

 
Council Member Robb stated he created a fillable form based on a west coast municipality.  

Mr. Robb stated the form is two pages and includes the information the Task Force agreed 

to.  Mr. Robb stated the form is fillable and can be posted on the website, once completed 
the form will be sent to the Clerk, City Manager, City Attorney, and Police Chief by email.   

 
Council Member Anne Brown asked who would provide the initial response.  Council Member 

Robb responded the Police Chief.   

 
Council Member Nicole Brown asked how many characters does the description of the event 

hold.  Council Member Robb replied there is an ample amount allowed. 
 

Council Member Anne Brown stated she was under the impression a section would be 

included that would state if an injury occurred.  Council Member Nicole Brown responded the 
form asks for that information in the description. 

 
Council Member Anne Brown stated under the signature section of the form it states 

“therefore it is critical that truthfulness be maintained in the filing and in the investigation of 
complaints against the police” and asked if that statement is offensive.  Ms. Anne Brown said 

the form states “honest feedback is essential to maintaining a Police Department that is both 

trustworthy and responsive to the community” and is followed by the previous statement.  
Commissioner responded it could be redundant.  Council Member Nicole Brown added that 

statement could be removed. 
   

Council Member Anne Brown asked if this form will be able to be used on the new City 

website.  Council Member Robb responded in the affirmative.  Ms. Anne Brown asked if after 
the individual hits submit they will receive an automated response informing the individual 

that the complaint form has been received.  Mr. Robb responded it can be designed that 
way.   

 



Community-Policing/Black Lives Matter Joint Task Force 

February 8, 2016 
 3 

Council Member Anne Brown asked who will assign the identification number associated with 

the complaint.  Mr. Robb responded it is a police complaint form so a member of the 
department would assign the identification number. 

 
Council Member Robb stated the only alterations to the form are to add the Clerk to persons 

who receive the complaint and take out the last line after the signature section.  Council 

Member Nicole Brown responded in the affirmative. 
 

Council Member Anne Brown moved, seconded by Council Member Robb, to approve 
the form with the stated amendments. 

 
On a voice vote, the motion carried, and the form was approved. 

 

A member of the audience asked the person who certifies the form would take an oath of 
office or would they be a member of the civil service.  Council Member Nicole Brown 

responded the form would be certified by a person bound by oath of office.    
 

A member of the audience asked if there are monetary incentives for police officer to make 

bench warrant arrests.  Council Member Robb responded no, the only funding from the 
federal government would derive from grants.  

 
2. Review Updates of Policy 16, which dictates procedures for police complaints. 

 
Council Member Robb stated the amendments made to this document were: replace the 

word typewriter with computer, removed subsection 3A-11.  Council Member Anne Brown 

asked if there is still a need to include in the policy if a complaint is submitted it will be 
immediately forward to the shift supervisor.  Mr. Robb responded it should be included to 

direct the police department how to process a complaint if submitted in person. 
Commissioner Shuler stated a complaint can also be lodged on scene and a supervisor will be 

immediately dispatched to the scene.   

 
Council Member Anne Brown asked if the shift supervisor will forward the individual to the 

online form.  Council Member Robb responded yes, or the individual could also have that 
person fill out a hardcopy of the form. 

 

Sue Melke stated the fillable form asks if the individual would like their name disclosed to the 
Police Department and asked how the form can be submitted if it includes their name and 

they do not want their information included.  Commissioner Shuler responded the individual 
would not put their name on the form.  Ms. Melke asked why that question would be asked.  

Mr. Robb responded if the form is filled out in person and submitted to one of the other three 
people not associated with the Police Department.  Ms. Melke said it could confuse an 

individual who checks no and assumes their name will not be submitted to the Police 

Department.  Mr. Robb stated that can be addressed by the Human Relations Commission. 
 

Council Member Robb stated “mental disorder” has been removed from subsection 3A-11 and 
replaced it with suffering from unusual health conditions.  Mr. Robb said “evidence or any 

other trait or condition bearing on his or her credibility…” has been removed.  Mr. Robb said 

all reference to the color coding of the form has been removed and the policy now only 
refers to one form titled the “Professional Accountability Form”. 

 
Commissioner Shuler stated this policy or procedures is directed to how the Police 

Department processes complaints.  Council Member Robb responded that is still how the 
policy is designed.  Mr. Shuler said since the form can now be submitted to the City Attorney, 



Community-Policing/Black Lives Matter Joint Task Force 

February 8, 2016 
 4 

City Manager, and City Clerk should the policy include how those individuals should process a 

complaint.  Mr. Robb responded the way he understands the process is if an individual feels 
uncomfortable with submitting the form to the police they have other avenues.   Council 

Member Anne Brown stated that should be added to the policy so the person submitting the 
complaint will be aware.  Council Member Nicole Brown responded this is a policy dictating 

the Police Department to process a complaint.  Mr. Robb added he does understand the need 

to have a different policy that directs other City staff how to process a complaint.  Mr. Shuler 
stated there is a complaint process for the City unrelated to the Police Department and 

something could be added to that process.  Mr. Robb responded if there is a policy for that 
process.  Deputy City Clerk Hellenga responded if a complaint is submitted it would be given 

to the City Manager.  Council Member Anne Brown added a policy directing other City staff 
how to process a complaint should be examined after the completion of this policy.   

 

Council Member Robb moved, seconded by Council Member Anne Brown, to approve 
the policy. 

 
On a voice vote, the motion carried, and the policy was approved.   

 

3. Edit Memo to the Police Chief. 
 

Council Member Robb stated he met with the Police Chief who provided a memo that 
includes all police training.  Mr. Robb stated because this was not an actionable item this 

evening he has not mapped what training is provided to what training this body is suggesting 
the Police Department receive.  (See Attached Memo) 

 

4. Examine Bench Warrant Arrest Data submitted by Radical Washtenaw. 
 

Council Member Robb stated when he spoke with the Chief he was informed the Police 
Department already responded to the report after reading Pat Lesko’s blog.  Mr. Robb said 

the Police Policy regarding bias directs the department to compile data if a complaint is filed 

for a report.  Mr. Robb said he asked the Chief why data is not continuously complied and 
was informed that the same officers police the same areas each day which he receives a 

report.  Mr. Robb said because of that consistency the Chief is quickly aware of any problem 
that might exist.  Mr. Robb said he recently spoke with Anthony Morgan to inform him of this 

practice.  Mr. Robb stated the continuous collection of this data might be collecting data for 

the reason of collecting data. 
 

Council Member Anne Brown asked if other Police Departments have been asked their data 
collecting procedures.  Council Member Robb responded no. 

 
Council Member Robb asked how often it should be required for an officer to have specific 

training.  Mr. Robb added once a schedule is developed for officers to have cultural sensitivity 

training, will that frequency be enough, and who makes that decision.  Council Member 
Nicole Brown responded the work the Police Department is people driven and will require 

trainings such as cultural competency at a higher frequency.  Mr. Robb responded but what 
is the standard.  Commissioner Shuler stated there should be a written policy that dictates 

what trainings are required and the schedule of those trainings.  Mr. Robb agreed, but he 

does not want to rely on the chief alone. 
 

Council Member Anne Brown stated the memo should include who is involved in the hiring 
and separation process, is it Human Resources or just the Police Department.  Council 

Member Robb responded he would follow-up with the Chief.   
 



Community-Policing/Black Lives Matter Joint Task Force 

February 8, 2016 
 5 

Council Member Anne Brown stated a best practice of police departments is to collect data on 

geographic locations rather than depending on Chief DeGiusti familiarity of the officers patrol 
locations.  Jeff Clark responded that was Sheriff Clayton’s recommendation.  Ms. Anne Brown 

asked if the County collects daily.  Mr. Clark responded he is uncertain.  Commissioner 
Saunders stated she is aware of a report the County develops that includes specific crime 

statistics including location; however, she is uncertain how often the report is created.  

Council Member Robb asked how specific the data collected by the County is.  Mr. Robb 
added the City collects location for use on the City’s crime map, but does not publish age, 

race, or creed.  Mr. Clark replied that data should be collected.   
 

Council Member Nicole Brown asked if the Sherriff collects that data.  Mr. Clark responded he 
does not know, but Sherriff Clayton did say data needs to be analyzed and in order to do so 

it first must be collected.  Mr. Clark added the fact that Chief DeGiusti said the department 

does not collect that data is alarming.  Mr. Robb responded that data is collected it is just not 
compiled.   

 
Commissioner Saunders asked if the data being compiled is for a specific location.  HRC 

Commissioner Shuler responded it would be dependent on the type of complaint.  Ms. 

Saunders said it might be more economical to compile the data continuously.  Ms. Saunders 
added continuously compiling the data would also help to avoid bias.  Council Member Robb 

explained the Chief told him this is the data he sees every day during shift meetings.  Mr. 
Robb stated because this information is reviewed daily trends can be distinguished without 

the need to compile data.  Council Member Nicole Brown asked what backs up what the Chief 
assumes, and there should be something numbers driven that would legitimizes his 

assumptions.  Ms. Saunders said her issue is if there is a complaint the data is analyzed 

retroactively.   
 

Commissioner Shuler asked how the collected data is stored.  Council Member Robb 
responded the data is stored on a database.  Mr. Shuler said the data is already collected and 

stored and when there is a compliant that data is reviewed.  Council Member Anne Brown 

said if there is a complaint only the data involving the complaint is being examined, which 
might not substantiate the complaint because it only examines one isolated incident.  Mr. 

Shuler responded there are two different kinds of complaints an isolated incident the 
complainant did not feel was fair and a complaint resulting from systemic discrimination.  Mr. 

Shuler added the data needed would vary depending on which type of complaint was filed.  

Ms. Anne Brown replied that information should be contained in the memo sent to Chief 
DeGiusti.   

 
Commissioner Shuler stated from his experience when he examines data such as his finances 

he can understand things about his spending habits he might not have been aware.  Mr. 
Shuler said if the Police Chief examined compiled data of officer’s arrests he might have find 

that his “gut” feeling is incorrect.  Council Member Nicole Brown responded or he might find 

that his instincts were correct. 
 

Darius Simpson asked if it is possible to require the Police Department to compile this data 
even if a report is not created.  Council Member Nicole Brown responded yes, and the data is 

already being collected it is just not being analyzed.  Mr. Simpson asked for clarification on if 

a complaint of biased is filed against an officer this data would be analyzed.  Council Member 
Anne Brown responded in the affirmative.   

 
Jeff Clark stated if data was compiled effectively and was FOIAed what would be found is 

that 98% “failed to properly signal” tickets were written for people of color.  Mr. Clark said 
the Police Department is afraid that information would become available if that data was 



Community-Policing/Black Lives Matter Joint Task Force 

February 8, 2016 
 6 

provided in a clear report; however, if the Police Department became transparent in that 

regard it could be very positive for the people of Ypsilanti.  Commissioner Saunders 
responded she agreed and added if the data is not readily compiled the City could be missing 

out on resources that would address issues raised by Mr. Clark.  Council Member Robb 
suggested if there are questions about Police Department practices then attend the citizen’s 

police academy or request to go on a ride along.  Mr. Robb added that would allow seeing 

how difficult it is to distinguish the race of an individual before they are pulled over.  Darius 
Simpson responded even if an officer is unable to assess the persons race if 98% of “failure 

to signal” tickets are written for people of color that is alarming, and if the data were 
compiled and a report was created it would provide evidence to the validity of that claim.   

 
Council Member Robb stated if an officer is pulling over a majority of African Americans on 

Hemphill St. that is an issue but if an officer is pulling over a majority of African Americans 

on Monroe would that be the same thing.  Mr. Robb added it is not simply compiling the data 
the data also needs to be analyzing it properly.  Council Member Nicole Brown stated if 

officers patrol the same areas each day which would raise concern in disparity in arrest 
statistics from neighborhood to neighborhood.   

 

 
Council Member Robb stated there are some places in Ypsilanti that have very little police 

presence and his argument with the Chief was the streets that most matter are Huron, 
Hamilton, Cross, and Michigan Ave because those streets cross through the entire City.  Mr. 

Robb added in order to show if there is bias the data on those streets need to be examined.  
Darius Simpson suggested street names be included in the report in order to avoid that issue.   

 

Council Member Anne Brown responded best practices suggest that data included age, race, 
sex, ethnicity, time of day, and location should be collected.  Council Member Robb 

responded all that information is collected.  Council Member Nicole Brown responded the 
data is being collected it is just not being compiled and used.   

 

Council Member Anne Brown stated a report created from that data should be examined by 
the Human Relations Commission or Council.  Ms. Anne Brown said this will provide an 

investigative body outside the Police Department to examine the data. 
 

An audience member stated approximately 10 years ago a report was circulating that 

described a situation separate jurisdiction would communicate with each other in order to 
attempt to pullover a driver if that jurisdiction would be unable to find cause.  The audience 

member added individuals were being accosted by the police based off of a mistaken 
identity.   

 
Council Member Nicole Brown stated she understands this Task Force was meant to be 

informal but she would like to ask Chief DeGiusti questions about why officers go to the same 

location each day and why is that a best practice.  Council Member Robb responded he 
assumes officers keep the same patrol because they know that area best.  Ms. Nicole Brown 

replied she feels an officer should know the entire City.  Council Member Anne Brown added 
officers patrolling the same area is a best practice for “community policing” because that 

community knows that officer. 

 
Council Member Anne Brown asked if it is agreed that the memo include language requesting 

a quarterly report from the Police Department regarding this data.  Ms. Anne Brown stated 
the HRC could examine that report and forward it to Council if there is an apparent issue. 

 



Community-Policing/Black Lives Matter Joint Task Force 

February 8, 2016 
 7 

Council Member Robb stated all information regarding crime statistics, other than race based 

on location, is already reported to the state.  Council Member Nicole Brown stated if a report 
on that information is desired a person would need to submit a complaint.  Council Member 

Anne Brown stated the Township already receives the Michigan Incident Crime Reporting 
(MICR) report from the Sherriff’s Department.  Mr. Robb stated that report is based off of 

what the City is already sending to the state. 

 
Commissioner Shuler asked if the report would need to be quarterly.  Council Member Nicole 

Brown responded a quarterly report seems excessive.  Mr. Shuler agreed and added 1 out of 
3 HRC meetings would be spent reviewing this data.  De’Real Graham asked how is a third of 

the HRC’s time being used currently.  Mr. Shuler responded creating policy and examining 
reports such as the one submitted by Radical Washtenaw.  Ms. Nicole Brown said the HRC 

would only be examining the report to see if there is an issue and if there isn’t there would 

be no need to spend time on the report.  Council Member Anne Brown responded the report 
would be submitted with a summary that could be reviewed.   

 
Commissioner Shuler asked who will determine how the data is compiled because it has to be 

controlled in a way that is meaningful.  Mr. Shuler suggested the first time this data is 

compiled and analyzed it should be done by a statistician in order to create a means of 
compiling the data and for controlling specific variables.  Commissioner Saunders responded 

she assumes that what data is being collected is already known.  Mr. Shuler replied it is not 
the data being collected it is how that data is compiled.  Commissioner Saunders responded 

if the data is already being collected she assumes there is a protocol for how it is collected, 
compiled, and analyzed.  Mr. Shuler replied he is not sure that is true and this body needs to 

know what to ask for so that a meaningful report is produced.  Ms. Saunders suggested a 

closed session with the Police Chief to determine what the protocol is.  Ms. Saunders added if 
when a complaint is made the Police Department is able to compile data and analyze that 

data there must be a process in place.  Council Member Nicole Brown agreed.  Mr. Shuler 
stated the current policy is the data will not be compiled unless a complaint is filed.  Ms. 

Nicole Brown stated much of that data is already compiled by the state. 

 
Council Member Anne Brown stated officer’s arrests need to be assessed to ensure that there 

are not any discrepancies.  Commissioner Saunders responded she would like to ensure that 
this is not about finding the negative it is about examining the possibility there is an issue. 

 

Commissioner Shuler asked what is the question the Police Department should be asked.  
Darius Simpson responded Mr. Shuler’s issue is resolved once the data has been compiled 

and the only variable that needs to be controlled is location.  Mr. Shuler responded he is not 
certain that is true.  Mr. Shuler said if he receives a report stating an officer’s arrests broken 

down by race what should he do with the data.  Mr. Simpson responded the officers patrol 
area could be listed in the report.  Mr. Shuler responded that is why a statistician needs to 

employed in order to understand what is relevant.  Commissioner Saunders stated if the 

Police Department is able to develop a report based on a complaint why are they not able to 
prepare a report regularly to be examined.  Mr. Shuler responded he would question why the 

Police Department doesn’t have a statistician complete a report when there is a complaint. 
 

An audience member asked if a bench warrant can by tied back to the issue court.   

 
Council Member Robb asked if the Radical Washtenaw Report assumes that all bench 

warrants were generated from 14A-2 District Court and that each bench warrant was 
generated in the same calendar year.  Jeff Clark responded he assumed the bench warrants 

were issued from 14A-2 District Court.  Mr. Robb stated Ypsilanti is given credit for each 
bench warrant arrest it makes regardless of what court issued the warrant.   



Community-Policing/Black Lives Matter Joint Task Force 

February 8, 2016 
 8 

 

Council Member Anne Brown thanked Radical Washtenaw for their patients because this has 
taken time to address this report.   

 
Council Member Robb stated bench warrants are written because someone does not show up 

to court and asked if Radical Washtenaw is suggesting if someone does not show up to court 

a bench warrant should not be issued.  D’real Graham responded no.  Darius Simpson 
responded the issue is not the bench warrant, the issue is the action taken from the bench 

warrant.  Mr. Simpson added people are suffering negative consequences from the bench 
warrant.   

 
Council Member Robb stated he spoke with the Chief who informed him he thinks Ypsilanti is 

the only jurisdiction reporting the data correctly.  Mr. Robb said he believes the data is 

incorrect for Ypsilanti and Ann Arbor.  Mr. Robb explained with the amount of cases that go 
before the Ann Arbor courts it does not make sense that there were only 15 bench warrant 

arrests.  Mr. Robb explained it also does not make sense that Ypsilanti had over 1,000 bench 
warrant arrests because it would mean the City would be arresting 6 people a day on bench 

warrants.  An audience member asked what the Chief said about the data.  Mr. Robb 

responded that the City thinks it is reporting the data correctly.  Mr. Robb stated it is very 
difficult to get information out of the courts in Ypsilanti and Ann Arbor courts to corroborate 

this data, however, he has a theory that 50% of bench warrants come from 14A-District 
Court. 

 
Council Member Anne Brown asked if a strategy should be developed to answer the 

questions submitted by Radical Washtenaw.  Council Member Robb responded some of the 

questions the Task Force cannot respond to because they are social impact questions.  Mr. 
Robb stated he is going to ask the courts for the data.  Darius Simpson asked if the point of 

that would be to verify the data in the report.  Mr. Robb responded what can’t be discerned 
is what year the bench warrant was issued.  Mr. Robb responded Ypsilanti Police Department 

does not look at open bench warrants and hunt people down.  D’Real Graham replied how do 

you know that and said it seems like it would be a profitable venture.  Mr. Robb responded 
the Police Chief claims the City does not do that and the revenue created from that arrest 

would go to the court.   
 

Jeff Clark stated he would claim it is profitable as cultural capital if not monetary and further 

explained if the Chief was hired by the City Manager to produce positive crime statistics then 
flexing muscle that he is tough on crime to the white people of Ypsilanti.  Mr. Robb disagreed 

because bench warrants are not a big concern for the community and this was not an issue 
until Pat Lesko wrote about this in her blog.  Mr. Robb explained people care most about 

crime index reports and bench warrants are not categorized on a crime index.  Jeff Clark 
stated arrest statistics rise when a police officer executes a bench warrant and if an officer 

suspects a person of criminal activity that officer can approach the court for a bench warrant.  

Council Member Robb responded police do not ask for bench warrants the judge issues a 
bench warrant.  The goal for law enforcement is not arrests it’s decreasing index crimes. 

 
Darius Simpson asked why it is important when a bench warrant was issued.  Council 

Member Robb responded because the statistics in MICR are arrests per calendar year.  Mr. 

Simpson replied the year the bench warrant was issued is not relevant what is relevant is 
there is significant portion of those arrested that belong to a specific race.  Mr. Robb 

responded there are two questions that need to be answered; one is the disproportion and 
the other is the amount of arrests. 

 



Community-Policing/Black Lives Matter Joint Task Force 

February 8, 2016 
 9 

An audience member stated now a judge uses electronic signatures to sign bench warrants 

and if an officer was blank warrants that officer could issue that warrant.  Council Member 
Robb responded that is something he can ask the court but he does not believe officers have 

access to blank warrants. 
 

Council Member Robb asked if the thesis of this report is that bench warrants should not be 

issued.  Darius Simpson responded there is no thesis it is a compilation of data that illustrates 
a trend and to incite City officials to find out why the trend exists.  Mr. Robb responded 

Radical Washtenaw’s stance is that it is fine to issue bench warrants.  Darius Simpson replied 
the issuance of a bench warrant is irrelevant.  Mr. Robb responded question 15 in the report 

references amendment of policies to relieve the large numbers of Ypsilanti residents being 
arrested on bench warrants.  Mr. Simpson replied why large numbers of Ypsilanti residents 

are being arrested on bench warrants must be understood before the solution can be 

developed.  D’Real Graham added either people are being misinformed of their court date or 
something else in the process that is causing a large number of people to be issued failure to 

appear bench warrants.  Mr. Simpson said a large number of individuals on the Southside of 
Ypsilanti are missing their court dates and asked the Task Force to identify why. 

 

Council Member Anne Brown asked if the bench warrants are written to people with Ypsilanti 
residents.  Commissioner Shuler responded the way he read the report is the data is based 

on where the arrest occurred not necessarily what their residence is and said this is one 
circumstance that needs to be controlled for in the analysis.  Mr. Shuler said it must be 

known how many bench warrants were issued by the local court, how many people failed to 
appear before the local court, how many bench warrants were issued for the individuals who 

failed to appear, what is the race of the individual the warrant was issued for, and if more 

bench warrants are being written for African Americans then white individuals.  An audience 
member asked if the Task Force is going to try to find out the answer to those questions.  

Council Member Robb responded this Task Force is up against government just like Radical 
Washtenaw and this Task Force will ask those questions but he has little faith it will receive 

answers to those questions.  Jeff Clark asked if that information is something that could be 

produced by a FOIA.  Mr. Robb responded the City Attorney informed him it is not but the 
Police Chief thinks it is public record.   

 
Commissioner Shuler asked when a bench warrant arrest is made is it known what court 

issued the warrant.  Council Member Robb responded all individuals arrested on bench 

warrants are lodged at the County Jail and he will ask the County Jail to provide that data 
but he does not know how sophisticated their system is to produce that data. 

  
5. Community Oversight/ Citizen Review Board. 

 
Council Member Anne Brown explained a handout regarding Community Oversite/ Citizen 

Review Board best practices.  Ms. Anne Brown stated Detroit’s Citizen Review Board has the 

ability to suspend officers if it finds cause.  Commissioner Shuler asked what organization 
developed this report.  Ms. Anne Brown responded National Association for Civilian Oversite 

of Law Enforcement.  Ms. Anne Brown stated a Citizen Review Board can provide for greater 
accountability, maximizes oversite, increases confidence in police, builds bridges, and 

increases effective policing.  Ms. Anne Brown added all this information is included on the 

NACOLE.org website.  Ms. Anne Brown stated the Board should have investigators 
independent of the Police Department and special prosecutors should be assigned on all 

cases. 
 

6. Discussion and decision on next steps/framework agenda. 



Community-Policing/Black Lives Matter Joint Task Force 

February 8, 2016 
 10 

Council Member Nicole Brown stated the complaint form and the policy will both be moved to 

the HRC for approval. 
 

Council Member Anne Brown suggested investigating sending a response to the Radical 
Washtenaw report. 

 

Council Member Robb stated some of the questions submitted will not be able to be 
answered.  Mr. Robb stated the question “what is the human impact the arrest will have on 

people’s lives” will not be able to be able to be answered by the Task Force.  Commissioner 
Shuler added he was not certain that the questions were posed to this Task Force to answer.  

Mr. Robb replied these questions were posed to the Task Force.  Mr. Robb stated bench 
warrants in his opinion are the most normalized offense and have nothing to do with race or 

creed and if the claim is African Americans are disproportionately affected does that mean if 

a white person does not show up to court a bench warrant is not issued.   
 

Council Member Robb said he does not think that is the case.  Mr. Robb said he is not sure 
the Task Force can answer how many bench warrant arrests were issued by District Court 15 

but he will attempt to find out.  Mr. Robb stated question 5 asks what practices are impacted 

when judges issue bench warrants and said if a person does not show up to court a bench 
warrant is issued.  Mr. Robb stated the questions this body can answer the information will 

still be difficult to access.   
 

Council Member Robb said question 7 “why did bench warrant arrests skyrocket in 2013 and 
2014 while other arrests remained stable” is misleading.  Mr. Robb stated if the historical 

average is examined the numbers did increase for all races and gender with a large increase 

from 2012 to 2013.  Council Member Anne Brown stated that is a result of the formation of 
the Eastern Washtenaw County Safety Alliance.  Mr. Robb responded he does not believe 

that is the case and said State Police made a change to the way bench warrant arrests are 
coded, however, the City still had a great deal more bench warrant arrests than anywhere 

else in the County.  Mr. Robb said the Police Chief told him the Police Department does not 

search for individuals with bench warrants and said he is uncertain if officers are aware if 
bench warrants exist for an individual before that individual is approached.  Mr. Robb stated 

he is not certain he is satisfied with the answer the Chief provided because the data is so 
inconsistent.  Ms. Anne Brown stated she would use the formation of the Eastern Washtenaw 

County Safety Alliance as a part of the answer of that question.  Mr. Robb responded if EMU 

Police arrests a person Downtown it would go against their numbers and not the City’s.  
Commissioner Shuler clarified the credit for the arrest is given to the arresting jurisdiction 

and not the jurisdictional location the arrest is made.  Mr. Robb responded he will follow-up 
with the Chief for further clarification. 

 
Council Member Robb stated question 8 is “why black men and women are disproportionately 

impacted by bench warrant arrests in other parts of the County?” and said he is attempting 

to find how “disproportion” should be defined.  Mr. Robb stated there is no doubt there are 
more arrests of African Americans but he is not sure if that is disproportionate because if 

100% of people who failed to appear are issued a bench warrant then the arrests are not 
disproportionate.  Council Member Anne Brown responded she thinks the disproportion they 

are referring to is the African American population is 31% of the total population and a large 

majority of the arrests for bench warrants.  Mr. Robb stated he is not certain that is 
disproportionate in this context he is not saying the numbers are not high.  Commissioner 

Shuler stated the comparison is important and said if 100% of people who fail to appear 
receive bench warrants and 80% are African American it does not show a disproportion. 

 



Community-Policing/Black Lives Matter Joint Task Force 

February 8, 2016 
 11 

Council Member Robb stated question 9 is “are black men and women disproportionately 

impacted by bench warrant arrests in other parts of the county”.  Mr. Robb stated this was 
thrown upon the Task Force and told the Task Force needs to find an underlying cause. 

 
Council Member Robb stated to answer number 10 the Ypsilanti Police Department is 

responsible for bench warrant arrests in Ypsilanti. 

 
Council Member Robb stated the Eastern Washtenaw County Safety Alliance has increased 

arrests in Ypsilanti to answer question number 11, but that was the point of the Eastern 
Washtenaw County Safety Alliance.  Mr. Robb said crime has steadily decreased over the 

past 10 years but violent crimes and gun rates have increased and how can that be stopped.  
Mr. Robb added there are a lot of illegal guns in this community and he wants people to be 

afraid to travel through Ypsilanti with an illegal gun. 

 
Council Member Robb stated question 12 is “how much effort is the EMU Police Department 

spending on policing off-campus and why?” Mr. Robb said EMU can be asked that question 
but that was the purpose of the Eastern Washtenaw County Safety Alliance. 

 

Council Member Robb stated question 13 is “under what range of circumstances are bench 
warrants arrestees apprehended? Are they apprehended at their homes, stopped while 

driving, stopped in the street, etc…” Mr. Robb said the answer to that question is all of the 
above. 

 
Council Member Robb stated question 14 is “what policies and practices of the policing 

agencies are leading to enormous numbers of bench warrant arrests?”  Mr. Robb said he 

believes the numbers are skewed. 
 

Council Member Robb stated question 15 is “how soon can policies and practices are changed 
in order to provide relief to the large numbers of Ypsilanti residents being arrested on bench 

warrants?”  Commissioner Saunders said the question they need to answer is what that relief 

is.  Mr. Robb responded this Task Force was told it needs to find out what that relief is. 
 

Commissioner Shuler asked if it is found out a person has a bench warrant shouldn’t they be 
arrested.  Council Member Robb responded in the affirmative, if a person committed the 

same crime at 10 different locations and failed to appear on all of those accounts 10 bench 

warrants would be issued. 
 

Commissioner Shuler stated he believes this report should be addressed by the HRC because 
the report assumes a pattern of racism. 

  
X. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION –  

 

None 
 

XI. CHAIR RESPONSE – 
 

None 

 
XII. ADJOURNMENT –  

 
Council Member Robb moved, supported by Council Member Anne Brown, to adjourn the 

meeting. 
 



Community-Policing/Black Lives Matter Joint Task Force 

February 8, 2016 
 12 

On a voice vote, the motion carried, and the meeting adjourned at 9:25 p.m. 






















	02-08-16 Approved Minutes
	20160201-YPDTrainingMemo

